
Borough of Bellefonte Council Work Session 

AGENDA 

6:30 – 7:25 PM, Monday, October 20th, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 

      VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS      

       Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at  

      www.cnet1.org. ATTEND IN PERSON.  The meeting room is open with normal occupancy 

      limits.  

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann

II. WELCOMING COMMENTS / OPENING REMARKS:

Welcome, everyone, to the Bellefonte Borough Council Work Session. No council action (making

motions or approvals) is taken during work sessions.

III. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION:
Note – All Times are approximate

A) Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority (NVJRA)-Kepler Pool- Cindy Kunes, Mike Musser

& John Tooker– 30 Minutes

B) 2026 Budget- 05 Parks and Recreation Fund, 09 Refuse Fund – 25 Minutes

IV. ADJOURNMENT

The Work Session will be adjourned at or before 7:25 PM. The Borough Council Business Meeting is

scheduled to start at 7:30 PM.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 1 of 134

http://www.cnet1.org/


Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 2 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 3 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 4 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 5 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 6 of 134



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Business Meeting 

7:30 PM, Monday, October 20th, 2025 

In-Person, Council Chambers 

301 N. Spring St, 1st Floor 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER – Council President Dann 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

III. ROLL CALL 

Mr. Bernier, North Ward  Ms. Purnell, North Ward  

Mr. Brachbill, South Ward  Ms. Sedgwick, West Ward  

Ms. Cleeton, Pro Temp, South Ward  Ms. Tosti-Vasey, West Ward  

Ms. Dann, President, South Ward  Ms. Meckley, Jr. Council Member   

Mr. Johnson, Vice-President, North Ward  Mayor Johnson, At Large  

Ms. McKean, West Ward    

 

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
Under Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council may not take official action on it with the following 

exceptions. Council can act on matters relating to potential or real emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency 

business to its agenda through a majority vote. The council must state why the action item is being added to the Agenda. 

Council may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  
Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it has been duly made 

and seconded.  The order of comments will be public comment and then council comment, including proposed 

amendments by council members.  If amendments are proposed to the original motion, the public will then only 

comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are taken.  You must be a Bellefonte resident, a non-profit 

representative, a business owner, or an official representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify 

themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes. 
 

VI. COMMUNICATIONS (written) 
2025 Upcoming Special Events. FYI, no council action requested. 

Bellefonte Art Museum funding request. This information has also been provided to the Borough Finance Director for the upcoming 

budget. FYI, no council action is needed. 

Speeding complaint on Allegheny and High Streets. Deferred to Police Chief – no action at this time.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at 

www.cnet1.org ATTEND IN PERSON. The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 7 of 134

http://www.cnet1.org/


VI. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be acted upon by a single motion. There will be 

no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council request specific items to be removed for separate 

action.  Motion/2nd to approve the Consent Agenda.   

Finance Budget V. Actual September 2025 

Finance Budget v. Actual Summary September 2025 

Finance Campbell Durrant Legal Invoice September 2025 

General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes October 6th, 2025 

Finance Stover McGlaughlin Legal Invoice September 2025 

Finance Treasurer Report September 2025 

Finance Voucher Summary September 2025 

 

VII. REPORTS 

Elected Official and Staff Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

DEPARTMENT OFFICIAL/ 

STAFF 

REPORT 

Mayor Mayor Johnson  

Police 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Chief Witmer Submitted 

Parking 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Ms. McCullough Submitted 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA): See memo for report and updates 

➢ Motion/2nd: To approve the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness for 

126–128 North Spring Street for replacement of five deteriorated exterior 

first-floor doors (two front, two rear, one alley) with proposed materials as 

presented. 

 

➢ Motion/2nd: To approve the demolition of deteriorated garage at 417 East 

Bishop Street (along Cherry & Badger) 

Ms. Thompson Submitted 

Interim Borough Manager 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Mr. Pribulka Submitted 

 

VIII. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Elected Official Committee Reports 
Please limit all reports/rebuttals/deliberations to three minutes maximum. 

COMMITTEE ELECTED 

OFFICAL 

REPORT 

Environmental & Parks Committee/ Ordinance ad hoc Committee 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Ms. Tosti-Vasey Submitted 

Finance & Administration Committee 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Ms. Cleeton Verbal 

Infrastructure & Public Works Committee 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Mr. Brachbill Submitted 

Streets Committee 

➢ September 2025 Report 
Mr. Johnson Verbal 

Public Transport Task Force Committee 

➢ September 2025 Report 

Ms. Cleeton/ 

Ms. Tosti-Vasey 

Verbal 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 8 of 134



IX. LIAISON REPORTS 

Reports will be submitted in writing for inclusion in the council meeting materials. Reports may include draft meeting 

minutes, notes, memos, etc. No verbal report is to be given unless there is a question regarding the report. If council 

action is requested, please clearly indicate it, including the wording, so that it can be stated on the council meeting 

agenda. 

ADMINISTRATIVE LIAISON REPORT 

Bandshell/Performance Center Project Committee Mr. Pribulka  

Bellefonte Area Industrial Development Authority (BAIDA) Mr. Pribulka  

Bellefonte Emergency Medical Services  Mr. Rhoat   

Bellefonte Intervalley Chamber of Commerce Ms. Thompson   

Bellefonte Police Pension Board Mr. Pribulka  

Centre County Boroughs Association  Ms. Dann   

Centre County Government  Mr. Pribulka  

Governor’s Park  Mr. Pribulka  

Nittany Valley Joint Recreation Authority Mr. Pribulka  

Penn State University Sustainability Projects Mr. Pribulka  

Shade Tree Commission Ms. Doherty  

Union Cemetery Association  Mr. Pribulka  

Workplace Safety Committee Ms. Doherty Submitted 

AUTHORITIES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Borough Authority  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

Centre County Airport Authority  Mr. D. Johnson  Submitted 

COMMISSIONS / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Civil Service Commission Mr. Brachbill  

Spring Creek Watershed Commission  Mr. Brachbill   

 SPECIAL COMMITTEES / COUNCIL APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 

Bellefonte Fire Department Executive Committee Mr. Brachbill  

Centre County Library Board  Ms. Cleeton Submitted 

Centre Region Council of Governments (COG) Public Safety Committee Mr. Brachbill  

SPECIAL APPOINTMENTS / APPOINTED LIAISON REPORT 
Nittany Valley Joint Planning Commission (NVJPC) Ms. Thompson  

Centre County Metropolitan Planning Organization (CCMPO)  Mr. D. Johnson   

 

X. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

The Borough’s Fee Schedule was changed/updated. Motion/2nd to approve the updated Fee Schedule as presented.   

Approval of Resolution No. 10202025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. Motion/2nd to approve Resolution 

No. 10202025-01 Adopting the Police Department’s updated Policies. 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 

Bellefonte Borough Trick or Treat is scheduled for Friday, October 31st 6:00 pm- 8:00 pm. FYI, no council action is requested. 

Borough Offices will be closed Tuesday, November 11th for Veterans Day and Thursday, November 27th for Thanksgiving. FYI, no 

council action is requested. 

There will be no Brush/ Grass Pick-up on Wednesday, November 12th. The last day for Brush/ Grass Curbside pick-up will be 

Wednesday, November 19th. FYI, no council action is requested. 

 

XII. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting agenda. Speakers shall 

identify themselves by name and street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to 

three (3) minutes maximum. 

 
XIII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

 
XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

The council meeting will be adjourned at or as close to 9:00 PM as possible. 

 

The Council Public Comment Policy will be included with each Agenda.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 9 of 134



��������	
	��
��������������������� !"#$%&�'��()('*+,-./0�12�3455-6+4./�71.8-+9�:;<9-./-/�=+-4>?@A�BCDEDFCFE�FGCC�HI�J�KGCC�HILMNN�OPPQ�PNPRSTMRMSUV�WXXYZ[\\]]]̂ZX_̀a_XX_bbacd_ef̂gd̀\ahaeXZ\d_i_b_i_�������� !"#$%&�j(��()('k4.l�mkno�m4..-+?@A�BCDBFDFCFE�pqrr�stuv��"�&����� !"#$%&�jw��()('x,1.0�75yz�n,z�o45-�*y./+4,0-+?t{�BCDB|DFCFE�}GCC�qI�J�~GCC�HI������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ����������������������������¡�*4,9¢�7-.9+-�£¤9¢�=..y45�¥45¦§ny.�̈©?t{�BCDB|DFCFE�ªGCC�qI�J�BFGCC�HI«««¬­�®­̄Q�°N­±²TP���³³³�́�����������µ�� ���¶���� ·��¶���� ¡�́�������������������������������������������¡��̧�������  ������µ����������¹� ���¡�� x-9�9¢-�oº,+,90�»1¼-�½1y�¾¢109�31y+�3409,.l�3+4,5�;¼-.9?t{�BCDB|DFCFE�FGCC�HI�J�¿GCC�HIÀ��Á�Â�ÃÄ�BCB�Å�qrrÆÇÈÆAu�?{�pBCB�Å�qrrÆÇÈÆAu�?{É�ÊÆrrÆËÌA{ÆÉ�HÆAAÍurÎtAÏtÉ�B¿|F~É�ÐAÏ{Æs�?{t{ÆÍvÑÒÒÓÔÕÖÖ×ØÙÙØÚÛÜÒØÝÞÛßÖØàØÜÒÔÖáÑÛÔÒâÒÛãäâÒåÔÒæÜáâÒäåæÙç�����������µ����������������������è��é����"�&����� !"#$%&�('��()('m-55-21.9-�=..y45�3+,8¦�1+�3+19?t{�BCDFEDFCFE�}GCC�qI�J�BBGCC�qI

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 10 of 134



����������	

����	
�����������������	
���	
�	
������	
���
���
����
���
������	�����	
����	�	��������	�	��
����	

����	
�����

	
�����
� ��!	�����������������"�����
����	�����
�����
	
��
�#���
������������$�

�����	

����
��������%&���
����
�����������������	
�������	�
����!	
����$�����
��$���������$�����������	

��������������
������������
���
���'����������������
���������
�#�����
��������	
�������	�
���������	
	�������
��������
������
�#�����
��
���(�

��)���	���	������������	��������������*���
���	

��������	

����������	���������
��������	����#������������
��
���)�������	

�������	
�����

����
���
����
��+��������������	�
���	����	
��������	��
����������	�����	
���	�	������	������������#	
	���
	
��	��,-../01-23�4-..�4/56789�:;<=><=;=>�?@A;�BC�D�E@;;�FCGHIJKLHMN�O8PPQRS8TU�F8SV�WXQPPQYZT9Q[�FQTT\RP]8T̂8[�_T̂9QU�7989Q\̀��

����
��������

�a��	������	�
��������	��������������
�
��	�
��
������+�
��� 	

���+��������
����	
������
	+������
���	��������#���������+�
���b/261/�bcd260�efg�,/26789�:;<=><=;=>�h@;;�BC�D�A@;;�FCijk�lm�n�kjok�nk�kpj�jqrj�st�unvvjwxnoq�nyxsii�txsz�kpj�ys{jj�ipsm�so�|nklxqnw�}yks~jx����txsz�n~slk���������-..c�//2�g-1-3/��c-3�b.c5d1/789�:;<=><=;=>�h@A;�BC�D�:=@;;�FC��������������������	�����	

�����
�������������������������#�

��	
��
����	�
��'���

����
���������	

��������

����
�������� ���	��������������
�� ����!��������� ��!	���������
����#� ��!	��������� ������������	�����	

��������+����
����

�����	�	��
����
���������������+���
��������

����
������)���������a	����
����������������� ��¡�¢�������	��	�
��#�����£���������
	���	�
�#��������

�#�
��������������+	�	�
��#�������	#	������#�¤
����
���
	��	
��¥¦§§¦̈©ª«¦�¥©¬©­®̄�����
����	�	�
�
�	
������°±²³́µ¶�·̧¹º»¼½�¾¿¶�¾À¾Á�/ÂcÃ/�Ä��Å�Ä-22/17ÆT�:;<=Ç<=;=>�WBPP�U8R̀

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 11 of 134



���������	
	��
��������������������� �!"#$%&$��'( �')'*+,-�.//012�34550/678�9,::�;6<=76/<�>?:/7@AB�CCDEFDEGEH�EIGG�JK�L�CGIGG�JKM�NOPQ�RS�TAUUVWXAYZ�JAX[�\]VUUV̂_YBV̀�JVYYaWUbAYcÀ�dYcBVZ�@BABVaefghijklmj�nhoo�piqgkirq�stork�ir�nmuuovhmrw�xmhy�zm{o|}�~iwo�g}jkow�|v��}�rk}�r��ouuo�}rko��r�����������iuu�roow�kgo�hojkh}}lj�}�or���}�oh�mk�kgo�zm{o|}��nhmjg���ho�v�uirq�|irj��~�o�imu�stork����ui�mki}r��oo��miw�}�����������s�fy�������miw�}r���������
Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 12 of 134



����������	�
��
�������
������������� ! "# $�%��&'&()*+,�-)./�-*++01234�56787696:�;<==�>?@AB$C������ ! "# $�D&��&'&(EFGHI1F*+�JK1FLHM*LNOP�567567696:�QR�234�5675S7696:TUVV�WXXY�Z[[X\\�]̂�_̂VX�̂̀ ]VX]\�Z]�Ta�b̂cZdY�e]dXX]�ZWY�f̂[̀\]�fZWXaĝZY�hV̂\̀dX\ijkX�l̂VV̂cUWm�d̂ZY�[V̂\̀dX\�kZnX�oXXW�Z__d̂nXY�l̂d�]kX�ỲdZ]ÛW�̂l�]kX�XnXW]iTa�b̂cZdY�e]dXX]�p�qd̂r�sa�tVVXmkXWu�e]dXX]�]̂�f̂[̀\]�fZWXhV̂\XY�qdUYZuv�wX[XroXd�xyv�ld̂r�zi{{�|}�]̂�~i{{�|}���_XWUWm�hXdXr̂ Wu�Ta�hkXddu�fZWX�p�qd̂r�tVVXmkXWu�e]dXX]�]̂�|Xddu�fZWXhV̂\XY�ld̂r�qdUYZuv�wX[XroXd�xyv�Z]�zi{{�|}�]kd̂̀ mk�èWYZuv�wX[XroXd�xzv�Z]�zi{{�|}�b̂d\X�jdZUVXd�t[[X\\�|XdrU]�qXX�̂l���{a{{�ỲX����$������ ! "# $�D���&'&(EFGHI1F*+�JK1FLHM*LNOP�567567696:�QR�234�5675S7696:TUVV�WXXY�Z[[X\\�]̂�_̂VX�̂̀ ]VX]\�Z]�Ta�b̂cZdY�e]dXX]�ZWY�f̂[̀\]�fZWXaĝZY�hV̂\̀dX\ijkX�l̂VV̂cUWm�d̂ZY�[V̂\̀dX\�kZnX�oXXW�Z__d̂nXY�l̂d�]kX�ỲdZ]ÛW�̂l�]kX�XnXW]iTa�b̂cZdY�e]dXX]�p�qd̂r�sa�tVVXmkXWu�e]dXX]�]̂�f̂[̀\]�fZWXhV̂\XY�qdUYZuv�wX[XroXd�xyv�ld̂r�zi{{�|}�]̂�~i{{�|}���_XWUWm�hXdXr̂ Wu�Ta�hkXddu�fZWX�p�qd̂r�tVVXmkXWu�e]dXX]�]̂�|Xddu�fZWXhV̂\XY�ld̂r�qdUYZuv�wX[XroXd�xyv�Z]�zi{{�|}�]kd̂̀ mk�èWYZuv�wX[XroXd�xzv�Z]�zi{{�|}�b̂d\X�jdZUVXd�t[[X\\�|XdrU]�qXX�̂l���{a{{�ỲX�F+H01��*1�0H2?Q�5675�7696:�8�99�<����8�99��������������?==�@O?4>��?O��;��==��R4Q�����44�@=�?4P?���4PQ�>�2Q?Q��AjZVVXudZWY�|Zd��ô]k�\UYX\a��nXW]�]UrX�x{Zr z_r�¡¢£¤�¥¢¦§̈�©ª¤¥¢«¬�¥§­§® §̄¡�°±¬�²³²́sXXY�Xµ]dZ�dXl̀\X�ZWY�dX[u[VUWm�[ZW\v�̀\X�̂l�dX\]d̂̂ r\a�e_X[UZV��nXW]�t__VU[Z]ÛW�qXX�̂l���{a{{�ỲX

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 13 of 134



��������	
�
�

����������������������������� !"�#$%#$%$&$'�()�*+,�#$%#-%$&$'./00�1223�455266�78�9802�8:70276�47�.;�<8=4>3�?7>227�413�@85:67�@412;A843�B086:>26CDE2�F8008=/1G�>843�5086:>26�E4H2�I221�499>8H23�F8>�7E2�3:>47/81�8F�7E2�2H217C.;�<8=4>3�?7>227�J�K>8L�M;�N002GE21O�?7>227�78�@85:67�@412B08623�K>/34OP�Q252LI2>�RSP�F>8L�TCUU�VW�78�XCUU�VW�YZ921/1G�B2>2L81O[.;�BE2>>O�@412�J�K>8L�N002GE21O�?7>227�78�V2>>O�@412B08623�F>8L�K>/34OP�Q252LI2>�RSP�47�TCUU�VW�7E>8:GE�?:134OP�Q252LI2>�RTP�47�TCUU�VWY<8>62�D>4/02>�N55266[V2>L/7�K22�8F�\]U;UU�3:2_̂��̀�����	
�
�

���a������b�����c���������d���b����d�b�efg������������������d��h�����eh��f�i���i��jgddgk���glm+�#$%#n%$&$'�#$o#'�pq�r�$o-'�pqstuvw�xyzv�{twzy|u}�s}zyy|�sw~��vw��{z�u�w�t��{t�y|uv��wz�y~�z��y�vwy�v���||��yvw����|tvvuv��wy�|�t����}zyy|�tv�����uv�wz��t|��wy�|y}t|��~�uv������tv���zy�������uv�uv��{z�u�w�t��}t�y|����������	
�
�

�����������g���g�j��b�j���g�*+,�#$%$#%$&$'����������

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 14 of 134



���������	
�	�
��������������������
������
����� �����!"#$%&��'(�%)*��+,��
-!.-/.0!01
-02"3
456� 7�889
:��;��;
�7<��;��;#=���� �;��>&'$�?)@
A&?�8
4��=���&
�8>��=���&#=���� �;��>&'$�?)@
B�9��&
A�����9�&8�����9#=���� �;��>&'$�?)C����DE
��>�
����
�%&��
 �;8�
9��
&��
F���'B�
���
(����;�
8���(���
� 
���
7���� �;��
B��
5����%D
E
F���8
����
��
 ��%&��9
�;���8�(�
%9��� '
EG?�
=��;
F���
���
%����%
 �����
>&��
 � ���;
9�&��
&;8
�&?�
F&�(��8
��
=�(�%�
&
8����;&���;
 ��
�����
?�����;$
H�;���
H��;�9'
����I
J%���D
4����8�;�
K
HL�� 
���
C&>>9
M&���9
B8?�;����
7���&�
�&8
����
��
�&9
&=���
���
%����%
&�
���
������%
$�&;�
&F&�8
(���%�;9
����
>&��
:�;�'N,��
7���� �;��
B��
5����%
�&�
>�&9�8
&
��9
����
�;
���
&%&I�;$
��?��&��I&���;
&;8
��;&���&;(�
� 
8�F;��F;7���� �;��'
J��?�;$
&�
�;�
� 
���
&;(���
�;��������;�
�;
���
&��
&;8
(�����&�
�&;8�(&>�
� 
H�;��&�
4�;;�9�?&;�&D
�����F(&���
&
 &�(�;&��;$
(�%=�;&���;
� 
F����
 ��%
&���;8
���
F���8
&�
F���
&�
��(&�
&������'
,��
7B5
��
&���>���8
��
����
���
����9
� 
���
O;8��$���;8
P&����&8
&;8
7���� �;��G�
��9
����
�;
��&�
(�&>���
� 
B%���(&;C�����9'
,��
:���;�9
��
����8�%
 ��
��(&>�;$
�;(�&?�8
B ��(&;
B%���(&;�
&;8
���
=�&?�
��(&�
(���I�;�F��
��>>����8
���%
��
&
����9
��&�
(&;
;�?��
=�
 ��$����;'
E
�;(���&$�
&��
F��
?����
C&>>9
M&���9
��
%&��
���%����%
&
%���Q���
>&��
� 
�����
���>D
&;8
��
(�%�
=&(�
� ��;
��
���
�����
���&��;$
�R��=���'
S�
&��
>���8
� ����
(�����&�
�(�;
&;8
���
��&8�;$
����
�;
���
��=����
� 
���
,�F;
� 
T�?��;���'N���
%����%
�&�
�&8
&
��%&��&=��
9�&�D
&(���?�8
��(��8
&���;8&;(�
 �$����D
&;8
$&�;���8
;�%�����&((��&8��
��&�
�;8���(���
���
$��F�;$
�%>���&;(�
&;8
>�>��&���9
F����;
���
(�%%�;��9'
C�F�?��D
8��>��������
��((�����D
���
&;;�&�
 �;8�&���;$
�  ����
�&?�
�; ����;&���9
 &���;
=���F
�������(&�
��?���'59
�;��;�
F���
����
�%&��
��
��
����
9���
&�����&;(�
�;
�8�;�� 9�;$
&88����;&�
 �;8�;$
��&�
%&9
=�
&?&��&=�������$�
���
��(&�
%�;�(�>&������'
S�
=����?�
��&�
F���
9���
>��&(��?�
�;$&$�%�;�D
F�
(&;
�8�;�� 9
�����&88����;&�
������(��
&;8
%�?�
��F&�8
��;$Q���%
����&�;&=����9
&;8
(�;��;��8
$��F��
� 
���
%����%'EG8
=�
�&>>9
��
%���
F���
9��
 ��
 ������
8��(�����;'E
&>>��(�&��
9���
&���;���;
��
����D����QQUVWX
YXZ[\W]̂_
̀XW\abVWcdefdg
h
ijkhlmmhkniocpqrsf
h
ijkhliohitjiuvwwvxyz{v|}~v}|�y��

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 15 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 16 of 134



���������	
���
�����
���
����
���

����������
 !�"����
#�$!�"����%"&��&'�(�&$�)*��+,��
-.�
/01/213034
//5/6
789� �&"�!�.
:�&&��(
#�;�&&��(%"&��&'�(�&$�)*��+<
7�=>>�
��.&!�=
#���.&!�=%"&��&'�(�&$�)*��+?@ A�!"�!�
��((
#A��((%"&��&'�(�&$�)*��+BCDEF
GH
IJEKLMNCOPQRSTU
VWSWXYZ
[\P\YRS]̂ĴL_̀
̂a
]bMMbâcdbefg
hi
jklmno
jpq
jpri
sfftruurvwnprq
xy
gz{se|vvm}r~
�{g��
e���g�fg
��pi
sg����~
�{g��
e�e�seg��r��mpr~
�ppk�~���ruurvwnprinrp������
������
������
��������� �¡¡�¢£�¤�¥�¦§£̈©ª«¬­�
®�̄��°̄�±²
³�¤£ �́
µ¶²
·̧·¶
¹º»¼
½�¾��
¿�́ �́�
À���
�¿̄���� �¡¡�¢£�¤�¥�¦§£̈©Á
À�̈Â̄
½́Â Ã¡��
�̄¥́Â Ã¡��� �¡¡�¢£�¤�¥�¦§£̈©ªÄÅÆ«Ç­�
È¡¡�§���±
��̄
ÉÂ§�
�¤́��¤
ÉÂ
¿�́ 
��̄
À�̈Â̄²
Ê
��̈�
 ���
�£�¤��¤�̄
 ±
�
�£��Ã�Â¤±
��� �́
� £Ã¤
¥�£¥¡�
°¥��̄Â�§
£�
È¡¡�§���±
��̄
ÉÂ§�
�¤́��¤°¦
È¢��Â¡±
��¡�Â�§
¤£
°��££¡
��°
�¡�£°¤
�Â¤
 ±
�
°¥��̄Â�§
��́
¤�Â°
����¦
Ë£Ã¡̄
±£Ã
¥¡��°�
�̄ 
̄Â¤
¤£
¤��
�§��̄�
¢£́�£�̄�±Ì°
���Í�§Î
Ï����°²������



ÐÑÒÐÓÒÔÕÖ
×Ø×Õ
ÙÚ ÚÛÜÝ
Þ
ßÝàááÛ
âãäåæçà
Þ
èéçÝããê

äççëáØÒÒãéçÝããêìãííÜîåìîãïÒïÛÜÝÒÜðñãòÒÜóÒßßôêßõö÷øù�ÝøÔÚò��ø�ø�Úçøâ�÷Ú�Ñ÷è�ø���ô�Úõ�Üöù	äö�øäÚ
ßôß�÷	×�
óôê�ò
Ô��Ô�Ð
Ù� ÐÒÐ

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 17 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 18 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 19 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 20 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 21 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 22 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 23 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 24 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 25 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 26 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 27 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 28 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 29 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 30 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 31 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 32 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 33 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 34 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 35 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 36 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 37 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 38 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 39 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 40 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 41 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 42 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 43 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 44 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 45 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 46 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 47 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 48 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 49 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 50 of 134



 

 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING 

                           Regular Meeting Minutes 

October 6, 2025 - 7:30 p.m. 
301 N. Spring Street, 1st Floor, Bellefonte, Pennsylvania 16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
VIEW RECORDING OF WORK SESSIONS and BOROUGH COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

Recordings can be viewed on CNET, Comcast’s Government Education Channel 7, or at 

www.cnet1.org 

ATTEND IN PERSON: The meeting room is open with normal occupancy limits. 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER (Council President Barbara Dann) The October 6, 2025 meeting of the 

Bellefonte Borough Council was called to order at 7:30 p.m.  *Council met for a work session 

prior to tonight’s meeting.  

 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

III. MEMBERS PRESENT  Mr. Kent Bernier 

     Mr. Randall Brachbill  

     Ms. Deborah Cleeton, Pro Tempore   

     Ms. Barbara Dann, President 

     Mr. Douglas Johnson, Vice President 

     Ms. Shawna McKean 

     Ms. Rita Purnell 

     Ms. Johanna Sedgwick- EXCUSED    

      Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

     Ms. Jalyn Meckley,  Jr. Council Member 

     Mayor Buddy Johnson- EXCUSED 

   

STAFF PRESENT   Bill Witmer, Police Chief 

     David Pribulka, Interim Borough Manager 

     Alyssa Doherty, Assistant to the Borough Manager 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

  

IV. ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA 

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, Council cannot take official 

action on it with some exceptions. The Council can act on matters relating to potential or real 

emergencies. Council may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through a majority vote. 

The Council should state the reason why the action item is being added to the agenda. Council 

may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

 

Call to remove the following item from New Business on tonight’s agenda: Approval of 

settlement agreement for Geisinger Building reassessment. Call for a motion/2nd to remove 

the settlement agreement for the Geisinger Building reassessment from tonight’s agenda. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 51 of 134

http://www.bellefonte.net/
http://www.cnet1.org/


Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 6, 2025 

Page 2 

 

 

D. Johnson motioned and Brachbill seconded to remove the settlement agreement for the 

Geisinger Building reassessment from tonight’s agenda. No discussion. Roll call vote. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT (Oral)  

Borough Council intends to take public comment related to the motion that is on the floor after it 

has been duly made and seconded. The order of comment will be public comment and then council 

comment including, proposed amendments by council members. If amendments are proposed to 

the original motion, the public will then only comment on the amendment(s) before final votes are 

taken. You must be a Bellefonte resident, non-profit representative, business owner, or an official 

representative of another governmental agency. Speakers shall identify themselves by name and 

street, municipality, if outside of the Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) 

minutes. 

NONE  

 

VI.  COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 

Bellefonte EMS 3rd quarter Municipal Update. No council action is requested. 

 

Concerns regarding Parking Enforcement in downtown Bellefonte. Council may take action 

– however, Ms. Dann requested to send this item to the police chief for further review and 

recommendation.  

 

Heavier Truck Pilot Project in the News. No council action is requested. 

 

Thank you to the Bellefonte Elks Club for the generous donation to the Bellefonte Borough 

Police Department. No council action is requested. 

 

VII. CONSENT AGENDA (will be acted upon by a single motion unless otherwise noted) 

All items listed on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine and will be acted upon by a 

single motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless members of the Council 

request specific items to be removed for separate action. 

 

Consent Agenda includes the following items: 

1. Finance Barton & Loguidice Engineering Services for Talleyrand Park 

Suspension Bridge ADA Ramps Invoice, October 2024 

2. Finance Barton & Loguidice Engineering Services for Talleyrand Park 

Suspension Bridge ADA Ramps Invoice, January 2025 

3. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes September 2nd, 2025 

4. General DRAFT Council Meeting Minutes September 15th, 2025 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 52 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 6, 2025 

Page 3 

 

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Consent Agenda. No discussion. Roll 

call vote.  Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton                yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann              yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson             yes  

 

VIII. REPORTS 

Junior Council Member Report (Ms. Meckley) 

 Ms. Meckley reported on various school activities for the start of this school year, including 

homecoming (parade, game and dance).  Sadie Stoddart was crowned homecoming queen 

and the dance sold a large number of tickets as a fundraiser for student council.  

 

Office of Community Affairs (OCA)/Historical and Architectural Review Board (HARB)  

(Ms. Thompson) 

NONE 

 

IX. CURRENT and OLD BUSINESS 

Revised Minimum Municipal Obligations for Pensions, 2026 Budget. Council must also re-

adopt the Resolution related to the Police Pension program each year. 

Resolution No. 10062025-01 

Police - $45,595.00 

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the Minimum Municipal Obligations 

as stated. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton                yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann             yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson             yes  

 

Nittany Communications Group LLC's proposal to use the Purdue Mountain Tower site to 

support the deployment of Project 25 (P25) radio infrastructure.  

 

Purnell motioned and Brachbill seconded to remove this item from the table.  No 

discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton                yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann             yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson             yes  

 

Cleeton motioned and McKean seconded to form a written agreement with Nittany 

Communication Group LLC. Discussion included the CEO of Nittany Communications 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 53 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 6, 2025 

Page 4 

 

 

answering questions and concerns from council members. One concern that was raised 

was in regards to structural soundness of the tower, as the tower is aged. The CEO assured 

Council that the company would assure the tower is structurally sound.  Roll call vote. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier                yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill          yes Ms. Rita Purnell                           yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 

List of items to be auctioned on Municibid.  

 

McKean motioned and Brachbill seconded to approve the provided list to be auctioned on 

Municibid. No discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

2024 Borough Audit Transmission Memorandum. No council action is requested. 

 

Safety Signage along the stone wall in Talleyrand Park, recommended by the Infrastructure 

and Public Works Committee.  

 

Brachbill motioned and Cleeton seconded to direct Public Works Superintendent to 

research appropriate signage to be placed on the stone wall between the Walking Bridge 

and Veterans Bridge. Discussion included a question regarding approval by the parks 

committee. It was suggested that it would be good to have the parks committee review this 

for their recommendations. No further discussion. Roll call vote. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

NJVPC recommendation to appoint Gina Thompson as the Nittany Valley Joint Planning 

Region’s representative to the Technical Committee of the Centre County Metropolitan 

Planning Agency (CCMPO).  

 

Johnson motioned and Cleeton seconded to approve the appointment. No discussion. Roll 

call vote. Motion carried unanimously.  

Mr. Kent Bernier               yes Ms. Shawna McKean                  yes 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 54 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Meeting 

October 6, 2025 

Page 5 

 

 

Mr. Randy Brachbill         yes Ms. Rita Purnell                          yes 

Ms. Deb Cleeton               yes Ms. Johanna Sedgwick               EXCUSED 

Ms. Barbara Dann            yes Ms. Joanne Tosti-Vasey             EXCUSED 

Mr. Doug Johnson            yes  

 

XI. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING ISSUES NOT ON THE AGENDA 

This Public Comment period is for oral comments regarding items not listed on this meeting 

agenda. Speakers shall identify themselves by name, street, municipality, if outside of the 

Borough of Bellefonte. Comments are limited to three (3) minutes maximum. 

 NONE 

 

XII. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS/FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER  

Please try to limit all comments/rebuttals to three minutes maximum. 

Mr. Johnson reminded the community that leaf pickup is scheduled to begin October 1. 

Please rake your leaves to the curb but not on the road. Also, grass pickup will no longer 

occur after November 19th. 

 

McKean reminded the community that October is Domestic Violence Awareness month, as 

well as Breast Cancer Awareness month.  Our community has several resources available for 

any individual who might need help in a domestic violence situation, including Centre Safe, 

local police, kennels for help with housing pets if needed, as well as several others.  

 

 Mr. Brachbill commented that the PSAB conference went well.  

 

Ms. Cleeton commented that October 5-11 is National Fire Prevention week. She reminds the 

public to check/replace the batteries in smoke and fire alarms and clear all exits of clutter. 

She also thanked the public works department for upgrading the lighting in downtown. 

 

Ms. Dann commented that the PSAB conference went well and that Council had several 

representatives in attendance this year.  

 

XIII. ADJOURNMENT   

Meeting was adjourned at 7:53PM. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 55 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 56 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 57 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 58 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 59 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 60 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 61 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 62 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 63 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 64 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 65 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 66 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 67 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 68 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 69 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 70 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 71 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 72 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 73 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 74 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 75 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 76 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 77 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 78 of 134



   
 

   
 

  BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT 

September 2025 

 
 

HIGHLIGHTS & ACCOMPLISHMENTS 

 

• Officer Bollman attended Less Lethal Training and is now 
the department’s Less Lethal Instructor. 

• Sgt. Neideigh and Det. Larkin attended a two-day Crime 
Scene Investigation class in Harrisburg. 

• Officer Hurd participated in the Bellefonte Moose Rubber 
Duck Race. 

• Cpl. Holt and Officer Bollman attended the Logan Fire 
Company’s 9/11 ceremony. 

• The Bellefonte Police Department participated in the 
annual Bellefonte Area High School Homecoming Parade. 

• The Bellefonte Police Department assisted Penn State 
Police with security at Beaver Stadium during three 
football games. 

 

 
  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 79 of 134



   
 

   
 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH POLICE DEPARTMENT    
MONTHLY ACTIVITY REPORT 

 
 

OFFENSES 
OCCURRED 

MONTH 
2025 
YTD 

Alarms 7 67 

Assault 1 13 
Child Abuse 1 17 

Criminal Mischief 4 14 

Disorderly Conduct 13 91 
Domestics 4 75 

Drug Related 3 16 

DUI 1 8 

Harassment 11 42 
Suspicious Activity 18 121 

Theft 2 29 

All Others 386 3,237 

TOTAL 451 3,805 

 
CALLS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Handled by BPD 442 3,739 

Off Duty 9 66 

TOTAL 451 3,805 

 
ARRESTS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Felony 11 21 

Misdemeanor 33 125 

Summary 9 59 

TOTAL 52 172 

 
MILEAGE MONTH YTD 

34-1 719 68,678 

34-2 454 90,317 

34-3 0 125,932 

34-4 557 89,122 

34-5 493 9,716 

34-6 444 39,964 

 
 
 
 
 

TRAFFIC MONTH 2025 YTD 
Stops 45 419 

Citations Filed  43  331 

 
PAYMENTS 
RECEIVED 

MONTH 
2025 
YTD 

MDJ $ 1,890.00 $10,112.91 

Probation $ 615.46 $4,356 

Other  $ 380.00 $12,548.82 

TOTAL $ 2,885.46 $27,047.73 

 
ACCIDENTS MONTH 2025 YTD 

Reportable 3 36 

Non-Reportable 5 74 
TOTAL 8 110 

 
OFFICERS’ TIME MONTH 2025 YTD 

Regular Hours 1674 14,888 

Overtime Hours 6 209.5 

Reimbursed 
Overtime 

146.5 245 

Training (exclude in total) 90 673 

TOTAL 1916.5 17,722.5 
 

SRO MONTH 2025 YTD 
Number of Incidents 48  237 

Arrests 0 9 

Traffic (School Zone) 6 28 

Hours Worked 336 2,004 

 
PARKING MONTH 2025 YTD 

Hours Worked 172.5 1,702.5 

Tickets Issued 240 1,934 

Revenue $ 13,890.95 $108,533.70 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 80 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 81 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 82 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 83 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 84 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 85 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 86 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 87 of 134



MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Bellefonte Borough Council 
FROM: Gina Thompson: HARB, Zoning & Planning Administrator 
SUBJECT: Office of Community Affairs Update 
DATE: For Council Meeting October 20, 2025 

 
 

PLANNING: 
 

The Planning Commission met on Monday, October 13, 2025. The minutes and meeting materials 
are included in  my report. Although no formal land development applications were presented for 
review, the Commission discussed upcoming SALDO submissions, potential zoning ordinance 
amendments, and received updates on several ongoing planning initiatives. 
 
The next Planning Commission meeting will be Monday, November 10 at 5:00 PM.  

 

 
ZONING: 

 
I continue to review, process, and issue zoning permits. I have been working on addressing issues 
for commercial properties. Most inquiries to the Office of Community Affairs relate to questions 
about local zoning regulations and land use for residential and commercial properties.   
 
Council approval required for demolition permit for 417 East Bishop Street.  
 Application included in packet. Proposal to demolish a deteriorated garage at Cherry and 

Badger Streets. G & R Excavating and Demolition will perform the work. Following Council 
approval, a zoning permit will be issued, and the applicant will apply for a building permit 
with Centre Region Code Administration 

 

HARB: 
 

HARB met on Tuesday, October 14, 2025. The minutes and meeting materials are included in  my 
report. There was one project for formal review and then discussion on other topics, including 
upcoming exterior renovations to the Plaza Center building on High Street.  

 
Recommended for approval/the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness: 
 126-128 North Spring Street (Nelson) – Replacement of 5 exterior first floor doors (2 front, 2 

rear, 1 alley) due to severe deterioration and security. 
o Motion to recommend approval the project as presented 

 
The next HARB meeting will be Tuesday, October 28th at 8:30 AM.   

 

 
OCA Updates: 

 
SEDA-COG / Potter Street Subdivision project – The Subdivision Plan for the SEDA-COG Potter 
Street Railroad Spur has been submitted to the Borough Planning Commission and the Centre 
County Planning Office for review. The Borough Planning Commission is scheduled to review and 
take action on the plan at its November 10, 2025 meeting. A draft Agreement of Sale for the Potter 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 88 of 134



Street Spur was provided to the Borough in 2023 but was not finalized. This document will be 
reviewed by the Borough Solicitor and formalized as part of the subdivision process. 

 
Ordinance Committee: I am working on revised language for several zoning ordinance amendments 
for the November 2025 meeting.  

 
Bellefonte Bikeway to Titan Energy Complex – McCrossin is working on a design package for the 
trail to present to SEDA-COG for review. Kyle P, Property Manager for SEDA-COG Joint Rail 
Authority (JRA), provided the committee with two documents to review: JRA’s Policies and 
Procedures and JRA’s Rails with Trails Standards. The committee plans to meet in the coming 
weeks to discuss next steps. 
 
CRCA Property Maintenance Issues – No updates at this time. Rob Semion (Fire & Life Safety 
Inspector) and Walt Schneider (Agency Director) are following up on property issues. 

 
Waterfront Development Project –The Easement and Maintenance Agreement for Dunlop Street 
is under Solicitor review. The final plans have been dropped off for signatures and recording.    
 
BIACC (Bellefonte Intervalley Area Chamber of Commerce) & Downtown Bellefonte Inc. 
(DBI) –  BIACC and DBI have agreed to hold joint board meetings under the new name Bellefonte 
Alliance. While both will retain separate 501(c) statuses, they are exploring options to combine 
budget management and coordinate operations. 
 
Two joint meetings were held on September 30 and October 7, 2025. Discussions focused on 
clarifying each organization’s community role, potential collaboration with CBICC on Bellefonte’s 
economic development, and responsibilities for future events. The group also discussed possible 
train station renovations and identifying key stakeholders for those conversations. 
 
In-Progress Projects – I work on these as time permits 

 
- Researching the Borough’s ability to tax games of chance machines (reach out to Clearfield 

Borough as they’ve successfully done this). 
- Connecting with the Borough of Brookville to learn about their Historic District oversight and 

enforcement practices. 
- Exploring the addition of a Sanborn map layer to the County GIS system. 
- Updating the design professionals resource list with new companies and contractors. 
- Developing outreach strategies to inform commercial property owners about the LERTA 

ordinance. 
- Seeking legal counsel regarding restrictions on certain types of businesses within the 

downtown commercial historic district. 
- Revising the Bed & Breakfast zoning permit application to reflect current requirements; this 

may also involve updating the ordinance. 
- Consulting legal counsel and the County Planning Office on the process for significant changes 

to approved SALDO projects. 
- Working to develop a provision in our SALDO ordinance for Minor Subdivision and Land 

Development projects.  
- Working to resolve 911 Addressing issues in the Borough, more specifically fraction addresses 

and multi-unit buildings. 
- Retroactive zoning permitting of existing business prior to 2021 adoption of a 

business permitting program.  
 
 
 

If you have any questions about the current projects, or would like additional information, please do 
not hesitate to contact Gina Thompson at gthompson@bellefontepa.gov or 814-313-1573. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 89 of 134

mailto:gthompson@bellefontepa.gov


AGENDA 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH PLANNING COMMISSION  
LARGE MEETING ROOM, ARMORY BUILDING 

301 NORTH SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 
DATE: OCTOBER 13TH, 2025 TIME: 5:00 P.M. 

 

CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL:  
Mr. Robert Dannaker, Chairman 
Mr. James Mills, Secretary 
Mr. Mark Edwards  
Mr. David Lomison 
vacancy  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: July 21st 2025 meeting minutes (originally scheduled for July 
12th, had to be rescheduled due to lack of quorum)  
 
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES: No SALDO projects for formal review. There are a few 
upcoming projects:  
 Subdivision of Potter Street Railroad Spur 
 Lot Addition of Ranio / SEDA-COG 

 
OLD & NEW BUSINESS:  
 Waterfront Development project updates 

o Temporary HOP from PennDOT issued.  
o Dunlop Street Easement and Maintenance Agreement – in review by Solicitor  

 
ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS: 
 The Ordinance Ad-Hoc Committee met on 9/12/2025. I’ve included the agenda if your 

packet. There are several ordinance amendments underway:  
o Add language and require zoning permit for retaining wall 
o Amend language about lighting in all districts to make it more enforceable  
o Update solar ordinance to reflect updated ground-mounted solar requirements  

 
 Draft Vape/Smoke Shop Ordinance 

o Action item: review and send to Solicitor for legal input.  
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Dave Pribulka was hired as the Interim Borough Manager for Bellefonte. You may 

recognize or know him from his tenure as Ferguson Township Manager. He is in the 
office Monday through Wednesday, and can be reached by phone or email otherwise: 

o 814-313-1571; dpribulka@bellefontepa.gov  
 

 Bellefonte Borough Council approved Gina Thompson’s appointment as the Nittany 
Valley Joint Planning Region representative on the Technical Committee of the Centre 
County Metropolitical Planning Agency.  
 

 FYI: Marion Township’s notice of a Curative Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance in 
regards to the Highway Commercial District. (attached) 
 

 FYI: Spring Township Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 
 
ADJOURNMENT: ____1ST ____2ND   TIME: ____________ 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 90 of 134

mailto:dpribulka@bellefontepa.gov


 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

MEETING MINUTES 
October 13, 2025 – 5:00 p.m. 

Large Meeting Room, Armory Building  
301 North Spring Street, Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
The October 13, 2025 meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission was called to 
order at 5:00 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Robert Dannaker, Chair      
    Mark Edwards 
    David Lomison  
 
MEMBERS ABSENT  James Mills, Secretary  
 
STAFF MEMBERS  Gina Thompson, Zoning Administrator  
    Dave Pribulka, Interim Borough Manager 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES – July 21, 2025 
Edwards motioned to approve the July 21, 2025 minutes. Lomison seconded.  Motion carried.  
         
LAND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES 

• No SALDO projects for formal review. There are a few upcoming projects: 
o Subdivision of Potter Street Railroad Spur 

 Long term vision – rails to trails project 
o Lot Addition of Ranio (on Railroad Street)  / SEDA-COG 

 
OLD/NEW BUSINESS 

• Waterfront Development project updates (2 conditions of the conditional approval) 
o Temporary HOP (Highway Occupancy Permit) from PennDOT issued. 
o Dunlop Street Easement and Maintenance Agreement – in review by Solicitor  

 
     

ORDINANCE ADDITIONS / UPDATES / AMENDMENTS: (in order of priority) 
• The Ordinance Ad-Hoc Committee met on 9/12/2025 - included the agenda if your 

packet. There are several ordinance amendments underway: 
o Add language and require zoning permit for retaining wall 
o Amend language about lighting in all districts to make it more enforceable 
o Update solar ordinance to reflect updated ground-mounted solar requirements 
 *Also discussed – Beekeeping and STR (Short Term Rental) Ordinances 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 91 of 134

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Planning Commission Meeting 
Oct 13, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 

• Draft Vape/Smoke Shop Ordinance 
o Action item: review and send to Solicitor for legal input. 

o Violation letter to the Vape Shop on Allegheny Street (too many lighted signs) 
 
INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

• Traffic light at Parkview Blvd / Zion Road  
o Contract has been awarded and the contractor has a notice to proceed 
o Latest estimate of completion is October, 2026 

 
• Dave Pribulka was hired as the Interim Borough Manager for Bellefonte. You may 

recognize or know him from his tenure as Ferguson Township Manager. He is in the 
office Monday through Wednesday, and can be reached by phone or email: 
 814-313-1571   
 dpribulka@bellefontepa.gov 
 

• Bellefonte Borough Council approved Gina Thompson’s appointment as the Nittany 
Valley Joint Planning Region representative on the Technical Committee of the Centre 
County Metropolitical Planning Agency (CCMPA). 
 

• FYI: Marion Township’s notice of a Curative Amendment to the Zoning Ordinance in 
regards to the Highway Commercial District. (attached) – I99 high speed interchange 
 

• FYI: Spring Township Proposed Zoning Map Amendment 
 

• Streets committee – “Complete Streets” policy  
o Streetscape plan/concept that accommodates multi-modal transportation – 

transit, bicycle, pedestrian, vehicular, etc  
 

• Discussion regarding Adult Oriented Businesses (AOB) – ie - Vape shops 
o Definition of AOB’s was changed in 2017 to allow for Tattoo shops to be allowed 

– which allowed for multiple vape shops to open in the Downtown district and 
surrounding areas. 
 

• Discussion regarding old Weis building (across from the High School) – a developer 
expressed interest in the Old Weis property 

 
 
ADDITIONS (after meeting agenda and packet was sent out): NONE 
 
ADJOURNMENT   
Edwards motioned to adjourn. ? seconded. Motion carried.  Meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  
           

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 92 of 134

mailto:dpribulka@bellefontepa.gov


Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 93 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 94 of 134



AGENDA 

HISTORICAL AND ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD MEETING 
DATE: OCTOBER 14, 2025 | TIME: 8:30AM 

OAK ROOM (SMALL MEETING ROOM), 1ST FLOOR 
301 N. SPRING STREET, BELLEFONTE 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  
 

Attendance: 
Members Alternates Guests 
Walt Schneider, Chair Robert Wagner (CRCA)  
Megan Tooker, Vice Chair vacancy   
Philip Ruth vacancy  
Mike Leakey   
Marc McMaster   
Maria Day   
Amy Kelchner   

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes: September 9th, 2025 

The meeting scheduled for September 23rd was canceled due to a lack of projects 
requiring formal review. 

  
Public Comment: 
 
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication:  
 
Project Review:  
 126-128 North Spring Street (Nelson) – Replacement of 5 exterior first floor doors 

(2 front, 2 rear, 1 alley) due to severe deterioration and security. 
o Property Owner, Matthew Nelson, will be present to discuss the project.  

 
Administrative Approvals:  

There are several pending reviews, but none that have been completed at this time.  
 
Information / Discussion Items:  
 Recommendations for HARB alternate, Planning Commission, and Zoning Hearing 

Board vacancies. 
 

 Waterfront Project update 
 

 Sign ordinance updates pending. Will continue to send sign violations in HD when 
time allows.  

 
Old Business & New Business: None 
 
Adjournment: 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 95 of 134



 

 
 

HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
BELLEFONTE BOROUGH 

(DRAFT) MEETING MINUTES 
October 14, 2025 - 8:30 a.m. 

Oak Room/Small Meeting Room, 1st FLOOR 
301 N. Spring Street 

Bellefonte, PA  16823 
www.bellefonte.net 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  
The October 14, 2025 regular meeting of the Bellefonte Borough Historical Architecture 
Review Board (HARB) was called to order at 8:33 a.m.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   Walt Schneider, Chair 
    Megan Tooker, Vice Chair 
    Philip Ruth 
    Amy Kelchner 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT: Mike Leakey 
    Marc McMaster 
    Maria Day 
  
STAFF MEMBERS:  Gina Thompson, HARB Administrator  
  
GUESTS:     Joanne Tosti-Vasey – Borough Council Member 
    Dave Pribulka – Interim Borough Manager 

 
Approval of the HARB meeting minutes:  September 9, 2025 

• Ruth motioned to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2025 meeting. 
Kelchner seconded. No discussion. Motion carried.    

• The meeting scheduled for September 23rd was canceled due to a lack of 
projects requiring formal review. 

 
Public Comment: NONE 

  
Additions / Corrections to the Agenda:  

• For discussion/review: The Plaza Centre (if time allows) 
 
Kelchner motioned to approve the amended agenda, adding a discussion 
regarding the Plaza Centre. Tooker seconded. No discussion. Motion passes 
unanimously. 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 96 of 134

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
Oct 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
Page 2 
 
 
Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Declaration of Ex Parte Communication: NONE 
 
Introduction: Mr. Pribulka – interim borough manager, introduced himself to the board 
 
Project Review:  
 
 126-128 North Spring Street (Nelson) – Replacement of 5 exterior first floor 

doors      (2 front, 2 rear, 1 alley) due to severe deterioration and security. 
o Property Owner, Matthew Nelson, will be present to discuss the project. 

  
 Kelchner moved to approve this project as presented. Tooker seconded. 
 Discussion included details about the project. Motion carried unanimously.  
 The project proposal will be sent to Borough Council for further review.  
 
Ms. Thompson’s notes: 

The doors are currently veneer. Front doors will have to be cut down in order to 
fit without removing original door frame molding trim. Current doors are 34 inches 
and 35 inches and new doors will be 33 ½ inches. Property owner proposed 
glass to bring it back to historic accuracy. Difficulty in getting materials for 
hardwood doors – the wait time and cost is significant. Composite materials look 
almost identical to real wood and are an appropriate alternative material.  

 
Administrative Approvals:  

• There are several pending reviews, but none that have been completed at this 
time. 

 
Information / Discussion Items: 
 Recommendations for HARB alternate, Planning Commission, and Zoning 

Hearing Board vacancies. 
o Gina mentioned that there is a community member interested in the 

Planning Commission vacancy, and there is another community member 
interested in joining the Zoning Hearing board.  
 

 Waterfront Project update 
o The project is continuing as presented. 
o HARB members expressed and discussed great concern about the delays 

with the project and how to manage further delays and/or construction of 
an incomplete project.  
 

 Sign ordinance updates pending. Will continue to send sign violations in HD 
when time allows. A notice of violation was sent to the vape shop and they have 
decreased the number of lighted signs at the store.  
 

 Plaza Centre discussion 
o Matthew Nelson, business manager, was present to answer questions and 

discuss project with HARB members for upcoming formal review and 
approval consideration.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 97 of 134



Bellefonte Borough HARB Meeting 
Oct 14, 2025 Meeting Minutes 
Page 3 
 

o Concerns discussed at last meeting:  
 Columns in the front (material and look) 
 Square ornament on the façade 
 Black marquee 
 Green tile (impossible to color match) 

o Name will be changed to Plaza Bellefonte and a logo from the 60’s will be 
used/brought back. 

o It was noted the building was previously a theatre and preserving that 
historic look is a priority for HARB. The new look being proposed is too 
modern. 

o Overall recommendation is to look at other options to black and reconsider 
tile – even if it’s a different color  

Ms. Thompson’s Notes: 

HARB supported the use of a black marquee, provided complementary colors are 
incorporated to distinguish it from the façade. The square panels on the building’s 
front were recognized as a unique feature and should differ in color from the trim—
potentially matching the tile or the marquee accent color. HARB discussed the 
historic significance of the existing tile and did not support the proposed dark walnut 
poly-board replacement. Members suggested using a modern tile alternative, with 
the color to be determined. They also noted that the proposed wood trim appears 
more characteristic of a bank than a theater. Reference was made to restored 1920s 
Art Deco theaters, such as those in Philadelphia, as potential design models 

 

 Discussion regarding the house by NAPA – 215 S. Spring Street 

o Proposed plan to make the property code compliant 
o There was a proposal to demolish the building but now the owners plan to 

bring the building up to code in order to sell it. 

 
Old Business: NONE 
 
New Business: NONE 
 
Adjournment: 
With no other business to come before HARB the meeting adjourned at 9:44am. Motion 
by Kelchner, second by Tooker. 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 98 of 134



BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE
HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL 

REVIEW BOARD 
8:30 AM Tuesday October 14th 2025 Meeting 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 99 of 134



Agenda Item 1

 Call to Order: 
 Attendance: Additions / Corrections to the Agenda: 
 Declaration of Conflict of Interest / Ex Parte Communication:
 Public Comment:
 Approval of the HARB meeting minutes:  
 September 9th 2025 meeting minutes 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 100 of 134



Project 1: 126-128 North Spring Street

Project Applicant: Matthew Nelson, property owner

Character Defining Features & Setting: 
Harris - Gryctko House - 2nd Empire, Built 1899
residential, duplex (4 units), condition good
Roof Shape: mansard w/ flared eaves and flat top
Foundation: limestone
Exterior Walls: brick
Other: large brick quoins,
Windows: large casement alteration
Porch Details: porch detail matches entry w/ 
fluted pilaster
Bays 4; Stories 2
1948 remodeling. Previous structure on 1887 
Sanborn map. Evidence of former full width 
porch.

Project Description:
Replacement of 5 exterior first floor doors (2 
front, 2 rear, 1 alley) due to severe deterioration 
and security.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 101 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 102 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 103 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 104 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 105 of 134



Applicable Standards for 126-128 North Spring Street project
Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation

6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive 
feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 
missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 106 of 134



Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation

1. A property will be used as it was historically or be given a new use that requires minimal change to its distinctive materials, features, spaces and 
spatial relationships.

2. The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The removal of distinctive materials or alteration of features, spaces and 
spatial relationships that characterize a property will be avoided.

3. Each property shall be recognized as a physical record of its time, place, and use. Changes that create a false sense of historical development, 
such as adding conjectural features or architectural elements from other buildings, shall not be undertaken.

4. Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be retained and preserved
5. Distinctive features, finishes, and construction techniques or examples of craftsmanship that characterize a historic property shall be preserved.
6. Deteriorated historic features shall be repaired rather than replaced. Where the severity of deterioration requires replacement of a distinctive 

feature, the new feature shall match the old in design, color, texture, and other visual qualities and, where possible, materials. Replacement of 
missing features shall be substantiated by documentary, physical, or pictorial evidence.

7. Chemical or physical treatments, such as sandblasting, that cause damage to historic materials shall not be used. The surface cleaning of 
structures, if appropriate, shall be undertaken using the gentlest means possible.

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken.
9. New additions, exterior alterations, or related new construction shall not destroy historic materials that characterize the property. The new work 

shall be differentiated from the old and shall be compatible with the massing, size, scale, and architectural features to protect the historic 
integrity of the property and its environment.

10. New additions and adjacent or related new construction shall be undertaken in such a manner that if removed in the future, the essential form 
and integrity of the historic property and its environment would be unimpaired.

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 107 of 134



MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:  President Dann, Mayor Johnson, and Borough Council 

FROM: David Pribulka, Interim Borough Manager 

SUBJECT: October 20, 2025 Interim Manager Report 

DATE: October 15, 2025 
 

 
 
Dear President Dann, Mayor Johnson, and Borough Council: 
 
It’s a great day in Bellefonte Borough! As you are aware, preparations for the 2026 Budget are 
well underway. Lori has been concluding work on the “small” funds, and we will continue to review 
those at Council Work Sessions until the final draft is ready for review and consideration. Lori has 
also prepared a revised fee schedule for Council’s review and consideration. I would like to 
acknowledge the hard work of all staff involved in the budget development, especially Director 
McGowan. 
 
A draft RFP has been developed for Managed IT Services, and will be distributed to potential 
respondents soon. There are some additional datapoints that need to be developed prior to its 
issuance. I drafted a Complete Streets Policy and resolution that was discussed by the Streets 
Committee on October 14th. It was requested that a conversation be initiated with the Penn State 
Sustainability Institute to consider development of design guidelines to implement the policy, 
should it be adopted by Council. I have reached out to Ilona Ballreich to determine if this project 
could be undertaken by graduate-level students in the spring.  
 
The HARB met on October 14th to review two proposed renovations of properties in the Historic 
District. First, a rental property at 126-128 North Spring Street proposed replacing five of its 
exterior doors due to deterioration. More notably, renovations to the marquis and façade of the 
Plaza Centre property at 124 West High Street were discussed at length. While no action was 
taken, the property owner was instructed to preserve the glass tiling at the building’s entryway 
and was given direction on modifications to the color scheme. These items will be presented to 
Council for review and approval at a future meeting. 
 
I attended a Community Advisory Council meeting on October 15th with Mayor Johnson and Chief 
Witmer along with representatives from the Bellefonte Area School District, CTI, and several local 
non-profit and human services agencies. These meetings are a fantastic platform to exchange 
ideas and learn about the challenges and opportunities facing our community! 
 
I will continue to be in the office Monday to Wednesday each week, and available remotely at any 
time as needed. Because the Borough offices are closed for Veterans Day on November 11th, I 
am scheduled to be in the office that week from Wednesday, November 12th through Friday, 
November 14th. That concludes my report unless there are any questions. Thank you! 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 108 of 134



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parks and Recreation Committee Report for 
October 9, 2025 
In attendance: Council  Members Randy Brachbill ,  Rita Purnell,  and Joanne Tosti-Vasey; 
Interim Borough Manager Dave Pribulka, Talleyrand Park Committee Co-Chairs Talley 
Fisher and Andrea Murrell,  and Pennsylvania Downtown Center Active Transportation 
Coordinator Samantha Pearson. 

I. Overview 

The Committee discussed various park projects, including safety signage for the wall at Spring 
Creek between the Veterans and Suspension Bridges, ice skating rink alternatives, and stage 
construction, as well as reviewing grant extensions and ADA improvements in Talleyrand Park. 
The conversation ended with discussions of e-bike training initiatives, feasibility studies for the 
railroad spur, and park improvement plans, including updates on Governor’s Park and budget 
considerations for future projects. 
 

A. Next steps 

• Andrea Murrel to work with Matt Auman on safety signage placement and language between 
the Veterans Bridge and Suspension Bridge in Talleyrand Park. 

• Talleyrand Park Committee will submit a letter to Council expressing their concerns about the 
ice-skating rink. 

• Dave to coordinate with Lori regarding the $6,000 item in the Parks budget for the railroad spur 
feasibility study. 

• Dave will digitize and distribute ADA playground equipment materials to the Parks Committee 
before the December meeting.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 109 of 134

https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a191a-a552-11f0-8757-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a191a-a552-11f0-8757-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a1f48-a552-11f0-8586-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a1f48-a552-11f0-8586-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a21b2-a552-11f0-a704-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a21b2-a552-11f0-a704-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a23c0-a552-11f0-9116-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a23c0-a552-11f0-9116-728ddd2e3342


• Dave to contact BAHS Principal Mike Fettison about student volunteers to wash and paint 
pavilions and tables at Governor’s Park. 

• Joanne to ask Barb and Dave to add the e-bike training recommendation to the November 3rd 
Council meeting agenda. 

• Sam has agreed to attend the November 3rd Council meeting via Zoom to answer questions 
about the e-bike program. 

• Rita will check on the possibility of using Bellefonte Elementary School for the e-bike training 
and any associated costs (completed; see note under E-Bike training). 

Talleyrand Park and Talleyrand Park Committee Discussion 
Spring Creek Wall Safety Issue between the Veteran’s Bridge and the Suspension Bridge 
Randy Brachbill, as part of the Borough’s Safety Committee, suggested adding cautionary signs on both 
sides of the stone wall asking people not to sit, stand, or walk on the wall. The signs will help reduce the 
borough’s liability if anyone is injured from this type of activity. After explaining the need for these signs, 
Murrell agreed to work with Matt Auman, Public Works Supervisor, to select appropriate sizes and 
language for the signs. 

Ice Skating Rink 
The Talleyrand Park Committee once again raised its concerns regarding the ice-skating rink. Concerns 
include safety and the rink’s location under conditions of regular, incomplete freezing during the winter. 
They are requesting more involvement in the planning and discussion of potential alternatives.  

Talleyrand Park Committee Funds 
The Talleyrand Park Committee is a committee of the Bellefonte Historical and Cultural Association 
(BHCA). Their mission is to provide community input to the borough and assist with funding to improve 
and maintain Talleyrand Park. This Committee continues to accept memorial brick orders on a rolling 
basis at $150 each, with proceeds supporting park improvements and a walking map of Bellefonte. The 
Committee manages approximately $15,000 in funds, which are currently held in a separate account 
under BHCA’s umbrella. David suggested exploring the Center Foundation as an investment option to 
potentially grow the funds beyond what a typical checking account could offer, which the Talleyrand 
Park Committee agreed to look into with the BHCA board. 
 

Bandshell Update 
Talley Fisher is also a member of the Friends of Talleyrand Park Committee, which is overseeing the 
Bandshell project in the Talleyrand Park Extension area of the Park. She provided an update on the stage 
project, explaining the challenges with the site location and soil contamination. Dave Pribulka suggested 
the planning process should include Council review before going to the Planning Commission. He 
mentioned upcoming developments in the area (e.g., realignment of the roads intersecting at the Big 
Spring and the Match Factory on Water Street) that need to be considered in plans to develop the Band 
Shell. 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 110 of 134

https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a25a7-a552-11f0-a6b0-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a25a7-a552-11f0-a6b0-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a2770-a552-11f0-b63e-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a2770-a552-11f0-b63e-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a293d-a552-11f0-9208-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a293d-a552-11f0-9208-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a2b38-a552-11f0-9f2a-728ddd2e3342
https://us02tasks.zoom.us/?meetingId=MNlgpFZgSD6VmQFxhKHbAw%3D%3D&stepId=4a3a2b38-a552-11f0-9f2a-728ddd2e3342


Commemorative Bricks 
Only a few commemorative bricks were added to the walk in September. They cost $150 per brick. Due 
to complications with online donations for these bricks, the Talleyrand Park Committee is only accepting 
paper applications. They are available by contacting the Talleyrand Park Committee or by picking up the 
application at the Train Station. 

Park Projects and Grant Updates 
Dave provided an update on the band stage grant extension through DCED until December 31, 2026; he 
will confirm with Council President Dann about her e-signature required for this extension. He also 
discussed the ADA improvements grant for the train station, explaining that while the project cost was 
increased to meet the $100,000 minimum threshold required for this grant, the borough no longer met 
the 30% match requirement. Due to the deadline for submitting this grant application and the lack of a 
council meeting before it, he submitted a waiver request for the 30% match. Dave will notify Council 
when the grant awards are announced. If we don’t receive this grant this fall, the borough might pursue 
a local share grant in the spring that doesn’t require a minimum spend of $100,000.   

Governor’s Park  
Matt Auman sent the Committee a status update on Governor’s Park. He added $10,000 to the 2026 
budget for maintenance at Governor’s Park, including removing the dead trees we didn’t have the funds 
to remove this year. The damaged picnic tables are being repaired and replaced by a local Eagle Scout. 
And the remaining picnic tables and pavilions that were to be washed and painted are currently on hold. 
These were supposed to be done in September during the Day of Caring by some BASD volunteers. Dave 
Pribulka said he would talk to Bellefonte High School Principal Dave Fettison about possibly doing this as 
an after-school community service project. 

Parks Budget Planning  
The Committee reviewed the Parks and Recreation budget, considering an increase for park 
improvements and equipment. Matt Auman has added $6,000 for the Railroad Spur feasibility study and 
$1,000 for tree removal at Governor’s Park. The Committee also discussed the possibility of developing 
an ADA-accessible playground. David agreed to bring materials for the ADA playground to the December 
meeting and to digitize them for committee review. Note, funds for this playground project would not 
be needed until the 2027 budget at the earliest. 

E-Bike Initiatives 
Library-based E-bike lending program 
Joanne reported that Deb Cleeton, the borough-appointed liaison to the Library Board, told her she 
needs to review this idea further and that, once her review is complete, she will present it to the Library 
Board.  

E-Bike Training 
Joanne introduced Samantha Pearson from the Pennsylvania Downtown Center. She assisted us with 
the Safe Walk to Parks Planning Grant on South Potter Street a couple of years ago. She joined us to 
discuss organizing an e-bike training session for municipal officials and staff. Samantha discussed their 
micro-fleet of e-bikes, balance bikes, and other micro-mobility vehicles. She offered to provide local 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 111 of 134



training and educational programs. She is offering to conduct the training for free at this time. She said 
that the PDC prefers to start the educational process with municipal officers and staff so that we 
understand how these micro-mobility vehicles work in the community and what Pennsylvania laws apply 
to the different types of vehicles. This training would include a chance for participants to try out these 
vehicles.  

Rita agreed to check with the school district to see if we could use the current Bellefonte Elementary 
School for this training. Rita sent Joanne an email on October 14 stating that “we can use the BE 
cafeteria for free as long as it is a weeknight that they already have a custodian on duty and it is not 
already reserved.  We do need to provide a certificate of insurance [emphasis added] to reserve the 
space.” She was also told that we are free to use the playground if the weather is suitable. 

At the work session on Monday evening, November 3, the Parks and Recreation Committee will 
recommend that the first training be scheduled for Bellefonte Borough staff and elected officials. 
Samantha Pearson will join us via Zoom to present this program to the Council. If approved, we will work 
with the school district and Ms. Pearson to set a date and time for this program for the Council and any 
staff members who want or need to learn more about these micro mobility vehicles. 

Railroad Spur 
Subdivision Plan 
Dave provided an update on the railroad spur project, noting that Pantera had completed the survey 
and was finalizing the subdivision plan, which would require Council and planning commission approval 
before recording. This plan will initially come to the Council for recommendation to our Planning 
Commission once it is complete. Once the subdivision plan is approved, the borough can proceed with 
the purchase of the spur, as previously agreed. 

Trail Feasibility Study Discussion 
The Committee then discussed a feasibility study for a trail project involving one or two bridges 
connecting Talleyrand Park to Missulo Park. Dave explained that while DCNR could fund the study, doing 
so would likely delay the project. The group agreed that doing the feasibility study first, followed by 
applying for DCNR funding, would be the best approach. Matt Auman has put $6,000 into the 2026 
budget to fund this initial feasibility study. Sam clarified that a feasibility study of this size would not 
provide full design drawings, and additional funding would be needed for design and construction. She 
suggested we start with this small study and use it to beef up the grant application for a complete 
planning study through DCNR, to be submitted towards the end of 2026. The Committee, Dave, and 
Samantha estimate that the construction cost, including one or two pedestrian bridges to Mossulo Park, 
could be around $300,000, which will require a multi-year grant application similar to the CDBG grants 
we have previously received for Talleyrand Park. 

 
 

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 112 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 113 of 134



 

WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING  

7:30 AM   

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 8TH, 2025 

AGENDA 

Members: 

Jason Ostroskie (Member, Streets) Chair Bill Witmer (Member, Police)  

Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) V. Chair Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP- Mgmt) 

Craig Bloom (Member, Water) Matt Auman (Member, PW-Mgmt)  

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS) Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep)          

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept)   

Samuel Horner (Member, Refuse)  

 

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

    

Guests: Randy Neff, Barb Smith, April Ressler 

 

CALL TO ORDER  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –September 10th, 2025    1st                                   2nd 

 

OLD BUSINESS  

➢ Safety Concern Forms Review  

➢ Recent safety incidents & near misses review 

➢ Update on Refuse Inspection Corrective Actions 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

➢ Video- Small Falls Are a Big Deal (19 minutes) 

➢ Union Representative Appoints for Safety Committee (Refuse, Streets, Wastewater, and 

Police), Vice Chair Appointment. 

➢ 4th Quarter Facility Inspection- Governors Park and Talleyrand Park-deadline December 

31st, 2025-Matt will schedule  

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER 

➢ Please try to limit all comments to three minutes maximum.  

 

NEXT MEETING  

➢ The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, November 12th, 2025 @ 7:30 AM.  

 

ADJOURNMENT    1st                                           2nd                 @                         AM 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 114 of 134



 

 

BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE 

WORKPLACE SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17TH, 2025, 7:30 AM 

BELLEFONTE BOROUGH BUILDING COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

301 N. SPRING STREET, SUITE 200, BELLEFONTE, PA 16823 

 

Members Present:     

Matt Auman (Member, Mgmt) 

Craig Bloom (Member, Water)  

Sam Horner (Member, Refuse)  

Randy Brachbill (Member, Council Rep) 

Scott Rhoat (Member, EMS)  

Bill Witmer (Member, Police) 

Jason Ostroskie (Member, Streets) 

Shannon Struble (Member, WWTP-Mgmt) 

 

Members Excused:  

Seth Klinefelter (Member, WWTP) 

Tim Schreffler (Member, Fire Dept) 

 

Administrative:   Alyssa Doherty 

 

Guests:  Randy Neff, Barb Smith, Teeter Group-Zoom  

             

CALL TO ORDER:  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES –August 6th, 2025 

Mr. Brachbill moved to approve the meeting minutes. Mr. Auman seconded.  Motion carried.  

OLD BUSINESS:   

Safety Concern Forms Review: None. 

 

Recent Safety incidents or near-miss reviews: There was an injury within the Fire Department 

during a barn fire on August 1, 2025. Injured Fire Fighter was evaluated and refused treatment/ 

transport. No paperwork was completed or submitted to the insurance carrier.   

The meeting discussed a recent incident where a firefighter was injured during a barn fire in 

Union Township on August 1st. The injury occurred when a portable water pump component 

struck the firefighter's leg, causing swelling and bruising despite wearing protective equipment. 

injured volunteer refused to complete required paperwork, including a Supervisor's Investigation 

Form. A request for internal paperwork will be made to Fire Chief Gary Lohr. Committee needs 

more information to conduct a root cause analysis.   

3rd Quarter Facility Inspection-Refuse: Mr. Auman conducted a third quarter safety inspection 

at the building and compost facility with Craig Herrold and Craig Bloom. The inspection 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 115 of 134



 

 

revealed several minor issues including the need to replace the AED, battery, and pad, as well as 

updating fire extinguisher tags and moving material safety data sheets from in front of the 

electrical panel. Most of the issues identified were minor housekeeping matters that will be 

addressed, with updates to be provided at the next meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS:    

Video-Strains and Sprains in the Workplace (7 minutes): The Committee watched the 

training video and completed the quiz at the conclusion of the training as a group.   

 

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS/ FOR THE GOOD OF THE ORDER:  

None. 

 

 NEXT MEETING: The next meeting will be held on Wednesday, October 8th, @ 7:30 a.m.  

 

ADJOURNMENT: Mr. Brachbill moved to adjourn. Mr. Auman seconded the motion.  Motion 

carried.  The meeting adjourned at 7:54 am.   

 
 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 116 of 134



SMALL FALLS ARE A BIG DEAL 

REVIEW QUIZ 

Name__________________________________Date_______________________________ 
The following questions are provided to check how well you understand the information presented during this program. 

 

1. Someone must fall 100 feet or more for the incident to be considered a “killer fall.” 

a. true 

b. false 

 

2. Safe walking is similar to defensive driving. 

a. true 

b. false 

 

3. A fall hazard left uncorrected is simply a fall ___________________. 

a. prevented 

b. unreported 

c. postponed 

 

4. Becoming so focused on a task that we become oblivious to everything around us is known as losing 

our 

_____________________________. 

a. situational awareness 

b. cognitive consciousness 

c. circumstance perception 

 

5. Boots must be laced all the way to the top to provide adequate ankle support. 

a. true 

b. false 

 

6. What you land on has little or no impact on the injuries you will sustain in a fall. 

a. true 

b. false 

 

7. What should you do if you discover a fall hazard that you cannot correct safely? 

a. attempt to correct the situation as safely as possible 

b. leave the hazard alone until it is discovered by a co-worker who can correct it 

c. mark the hazard so your co-workers see it 

 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 117 of 134



BELLEFONTE BOROUGH WATER AUTHORITY  

MEETING MINUTES  

REGULAR MEETING 
October 7, 2025 – 6 p.m. 

301 N. Spring Street, Suite 200 – The Oak Room 

Bellefonte, PA  16823 

www.bellefonte.net 
 

CALL TO ORDER  

The meeting was called to order October 7, 2025 at 6 p.m.  

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

ROLL CALL  Authority members present:       

Mr. Joe Beigle    

Mr. Greg Brown  Mr. Frank (Buddy) Halderman (ABSENT) 

Mr. Jon Eaton  Mr. Doug Johnson 

Mr. Joe Falcone (EXCUSED) Mr. Ralph Stewart (EXCUSED) 

   

                    Staff Mr. Frank Noll, WWTP Superintendent 

   Mr. Matt Auman, Public Works Superintendent 

   Mr. Shannon Struble, WWTP Assistant Superintendent 

    

        Guests Mr. David Pribulka 

              

 

MINUTES  

A motion was made by ? and seconded by ? to approve the minutes from September 3, 2025. No 

discussion. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

ADDITIONS TO AGENDA  

In accordance with Act 65 of 2021, If a matter is not on the Agenda, the Authority cannot take 

official action on it with some exceptions. The Authority can act on matters relating to potential 

or real emergencies. The Authority may add a matter of agency business to its agenda through 

majority vote. The Authority should state the reason why the action item is being added to the 

Agenda. The Authority may vote to add an action item(s) to the agenda. 

NONE  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMUNICATIONS - ORAL 

Please sign in, come to the podium at the appropriate time, and state your name and address and 

what you are speaking about. Please limit comments to three minutes maximum. 

NONE  

 

 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 118 of 134

http://www.bellefonte.net/


Bellefonte Borough Authority 

October 7, 2025 Meeting Minutes 

Page 2 

COMMUNICATIONS (Written) 

NONE 

 

FINANCIALS (Mr. Falcone) 

Budget v. Actual August 2025. 

 

There was no motion or vote to accept the financial report.  

 

ENGINEER’S REPORT (Jean Ryan, Barton and Loguidice) 

Water: 

○ Jean reported on several projects and permits being completed.  

○ Update – Valentine Hill Road water main replacement will be put out to bid around 

November 20th, the bid will be awarded at the December Authority meeting. 

○ The project is close to the stream (possibly within 50ft) so a DEP permit may be 

required.  

 

Wastewater: 

○ Jean reported on several projects and permits being completed.  

○ The RAS pumps are still in the installment phase. 

 

SEWER REPORT (Superintendent - Frank) 

The Superintendent highlighted the details of various projects and repairs completed in September 

2025. 

 

Bulk Water sales for September were 154,500 gallons. 

 

An operator resigned last month. 

 

NOV’s were sent out (notice of violation) 

 

Spring Benner Walker sent a notice about land applications vs UAJA disposal – and it’s about a 

57% increase 

 

WATER REPORT (Matt) 

 Details were offered regarding projects and repairs completed in September 2025. 

o 40 PAONE calls 

o Installed 38 new water meters 

o Niagara – ? gallons 

o The Auth is 3 days into the GIS mapping for water (manholes, shutoffs, main valves etc) – 

especially in outlying areas. 

OLD BUSINESS    

Big Spring Enhancements - landscaping update 

 

Act 57 Study – Bellefonte Corning System Tapping Fee Update. 

(?40:00) motioned and (?) seconded to approve the Act 57 Study. No discussion. Motion 

carried unanimously.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 119 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Authority 

October 7, 2025 Meeting Minutes 

Page 3 

 

Review of current Rules and Regulations. Staff will try to review the regulations and provide 

markups to the Authority. 

 

Niagara Bottling Agreement. Authority may review the current agreement and amend it. 

 

New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement (equipment on 

the water tower).  

(?43:50) motioned and (?) seconded to approve the New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 

Fourth Amendment to Lease Agreement. Discusion included a comment that if the Authority 

accepts this new lease agreement they will be losing approximately $500/mo. The current 

agreement is $2843.50/mo and the new agreement is for $2345.00/mo for the next 5 years. 

The current agreement expires in 2028. Motion did not carry for approval of the amendment.   

 

 

NEW BUSINESS (Discussed earlier in the meeting) 

Daily Water withdrawal September 2025. No Authority action is requested. 

o Discussion regarding leaks and responsibility for fixing leaks. It was agreed this would be on 

a future agenda for discussion, 

 

McQuaide Legal Invoice September 2025.  

(?55:34) motioned and seconded to issue payment for McQuaide Legal Invoice September 

2025. No discussion. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Consider appointment of Interim Borough Manager as Authority Secretary 

 (? 56:00) motioned and seconded to approve this appointment. No discussion. Motion carried 

unanimously.  

 

DISCUSSION 

John Curtain discussion.   

 

Proposal for a new trailer at the control building. The trailer is needed for heat. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

 ? motioned and ? seconded to adjourn tonight’s meeting. No discussion. Motion carried. Meeting 

adjourned at 7:06pm.  

 

NOTE from the transcriptionist:  

Please make sure members are using microphones or speaking up loudly and clearly, and please 

make sure someone announces the names for all motions and seconds. There were 6 motions 

and not one of them was announced. I don’t have any way of knowing who is making 

motions/seconds. I cannot discern individual voices from a recording. Thank you. 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 120 of 134



STATE COLLEGE REGIONAL AIRPORT/CENTRE COUNTY AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
AUTHORITY BOARD MEETING 

September 11th, 2025 – 7 PM 
Terminal Conference Room and via Zoom 

 
Meeting Minutes 

 
In attendance “X” 

 
Authority Board Members  Appointed/Staff  
Mr. Gray, Centre County X Mr. Austin Bringhurst, Solicitor – in for 

David Gaines  
X 

Mr. Groshel, State College Borough, 
Chair  

X Mr. Rodgers, Director, SCE/PSU via 
Zoom 

X 

Mr. Hanscom, Benner Township, 
Treasurer 

X Mr. Seid, IT-Marketing, SCE/CCAA   

Mr. Johnson, Bellefonte Borough, 
Vice-Chair  

X Mr. McMurtrie, Terminal Manager, 
SCE/CCAA 

X 

Mr. Khoury, Centre County X Mr. Stewart, Interim Executive Director, 
SCE/CCAA 

X 

Mr. Mose, State College Borough, 
Secretary  

X   

Ms. Celesta Powell, Centre County     
Mr. Steudler, Patton Township X   
Mr. Uhler, Bellefonte Borough X   
    
Guests    
None      
    
    

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:00 PM by Mr. Groshel.  

1. Guests/Special Recognition 
None  

2. Public Comment/Written Correspondence 
None  

3. Current and Old Business 
None  

4. New Business  
4.1 Consider Resolution for approving grant number 3-42-0096-083-2025 under the airport 

infrastructure grant program for the purpose of upgrading weather reporting equipment 
(AWOS-IV) and providing for proper officers of this authority to take all action necessary 
to approve and comply with the terms of said grant. 

 
Mr. Rodgers indicated that the current system is approximately twenty years old and at the 

end of its useful life.  The new system will have a freezing rain sensor and is an upgrade 
to an AWOS IV system. 

 
Motion for approval of the Grant Resolution as presented was made by Mr. Steudler. Mr. 
Uhler seconded the motion.  The motion was unanimously approved. 

  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 121 of 134



5. Comments – around the room 
Mr. Khoury will contact a CCMPO representative to discuss the airport’s involvement in road 
planning.   
 
The Economy Lot has been filled to capacity at times.  It may be time to rearrange the 
barriers to add some additional spaces.  
 
Mr. Stewart will register board members for the October 14th CBICC Air Service Summit 
event.  

6. Adjournment (action) 
Mr. Johnson motioned to adjourn the meeting.  Mr. Mose seconded the motion.  The meeting was 
adjourned at 7:22 pm. 

 
Respectfully submitted 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 122 of 134



1 
 

Centre County Library & Historical Museum Board of Trustees Meeting 
Miles-Humes House -Virtual Option 

Thursday, August 28, 2025  
6:00 pm 

 
Trustees Present: Deborah Cleeton, Carl Inglesby, Mary Prendergast, Rhonda Rumbaugh, 

Kathleen Gomez, Jennifer Rosson, Bryce Taylor, Justin Miller  
Trustees Absent: Vickie Barnett 

Staff Present: Michele Reese, Denise Sticha 
Guests Present: Paul Link 
Call to Order: Justin Miller,Vice- President, called the meeting to order at 6:01pm. 
 
Public Comments and Correspondence:  
 
Audit Review - Paul Link - Mr. Link reviewed the 2024 Auditors notes and the 2024 990. 

Discussion was held regarding the report and the collections on hand. Mr. Link thanked Sticha 
and Reese for pulling the information together for the audit.  Taylor made a motion to approve 

the 2024 Audit and 990. Seconded by Cleeton. Motion carried. 
 
Consent Agenda: Rumbaugh made a motion to approve the June 2025 minutes and the 
Director’s June and July 2025 Operations Report. Seconded by Prendergast. Motion carried.  
 
Directors Report:  
SLP - Sticha stated that there was an increase of 26% over the 2024 participation. There were 
more adults that participated this year. Further discussion was held regarding SLP. 
 
HVAB Tourism Grant - The grant for 2024/2025 was used for new carpeting, flooring, and some 

painting was done as well. We were awarded a $10,000 grant for the 2025/2026 term. The 
grant will be used to continue the painting that was started. The plan is to do the vestibule on 

the North Allegheny St., the downstairs hallway, and the downstairs bathroom. Pat Masullo will 
do the painting during the holiday break. Sticha hopes to have the painting quotes for the 

September board meeting. 
 
Userful migration - Sticha stated the migration has begun to Cassie. Andrews has begun 
preparing the new computers for migration, and plans to have the Bellefonte computers up and 
running the first week of September. Holt and Centre Hall will be done the following week. 

Discussion was held regarding the Customer Support with Librerica for filtering sites on the 
computer, and remote printing. We will be done with Userful in September. 

 
Municipal Support -Sticha stated she is working on getting the Municipal letters sent out.  

 
Finance Report and Investment Summary:. Sticha stated that we are currently having cash flow 

issues and are waiting on Municipal donations to come in. Sticha reviewed the P&L Discussed 
the expense side as well. Currently, we are not sure when the State funding may arrive due to 

lack of the budget being passed at this time. Sticha reviewed the CD investment report, and 
discussed the maturing CD from Kish. She recommended that we cash that CD in for the full 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 123 of 134



2 
 

amount, and the maturing CD from FNB in October we should withdraw some of those funds 
and roll the balance into a new CD. Sticha gave a review of the investments and stated that 

they are performing well. Discussion was held regarding the financial needs and the support of 
the board by Rhumbaugh. Further discussion was held regarding expenses of the entire system.  

Taylor made a motion to approve the Finance Reports and Investment Summaries for June 
and July 2025.  Seconded by Cleeton. Motion carried.  

 
New Business: 

● Director search - Sticha stated that the Personnel committee met and reviewed the 
Director’s position. The position will be advertised at the beginning of September.  
Discussion was held regarding the job description for the advertised position and that 
Exempt needs to be added. Applications will close out October 6, 2025. Sticha discussed 
the process of going through the candidates and hiring process. Taylor stated that each 
branch should have a representative along with Clemens, and the Personnel committee. 
Discussion was held regarding the committee meetings and representation during the 

meetings. The position will be advertised on the PA mail all, and our website.  
 

● Girl Scout Little House and Bellefonte Borough Council work session - Sticha updated 
the Board on the work that needs to be done to the sidewalk, porch, and steps. Sticha 
stated that we are trying to build up revenue for the project, and she has applied for a 
Centre Foundation grant. The Garden Club and the Friends of the Little House have 
committed funds for the project as well. Sticha suggested that we approach Bellefonte 
Borough to see if they may have funds available to help cover the cost as well. Cleeton 
stated that we should do a presentation to the Borough Board, and give them the 
details as to why we are doing the changes. Discussed making a presentation to the 
Borough at their October 6, 2025 meeting. Further discussion was held regarding the 
project and the completion timeframe.  

 
Old Business:  

Keystone Grant - Sticha stated the Keystone Grant application has not opened yet. The State is 
migrating to a new platform, and the migration has not been completed as of yet. Once 

available the grant will have the same timeframe to apply for the grant as it would normally. 
 
Municipal Visits: No discussion. 
 
Committee Reports: 

Finance:  Cleeton stated that the Finance Committee is recommending that the Kish CD be 
cashed out to help with cash flow. Seconded by Taylor. Motion carried. Taylor asked when the 

work on the budget will begin. Sticha stated she will begin on the budget the first week of 
November. Sticha stated that we currently have $67,615.92 in the Centre Hall Expansion 

account and stated that she and Reese had discussed taking some of the funds and opening a 
CD. Cleeton asked about current CD rates and Reese gave the rate information for Kish and 

FNB. She stated that the shorter term CD’s have a higher interest rate. Discussion ensued 
regarding the amount to place in the CD, and upcoming financial needs. Cleeton made a 

motion to open a CD up to $50,000 pending advice  from John Sengle about any upcoming or 
pending expansion expenses . Seconded by Rhumbaugh. Motion carried.  

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 124 of 134



3 
 

 
Personnel: Sticha discussed the health insurance and the renewal choices. Reese then reviewed 

the type of insurance, cost, coverage, and company and explained level funding and out of 
pocket costs. Cleeton asked when the decision had to be made for the insurance, and Reese 

stated that it needed to be done before September 30th because the first invoice for the new 
insurance is billed in October. 

Sticha and Reese reviewed the 2026 MMO for PMRS with the Board. Sticha stated that the 
money invested in PMRS are by staff only, and that CCL&HM does not contribute to the 

retirement. The 2026 MMO report will be submitted in September. 
 
Property:  
Museum –  Sticha stated that the Mini Splits in her office, and the Memory Lab have stopped 
working at full capacity, and we will be replacing them next week. A bid was received from 
Hazel’s and Redmond’s. Hazel’s had the lower bid. They will begin the replacement at the 
beginning of next week.  

 
Bellefonte – Nothing to report. 

 
Centre Hall – Rhumbaugh stated the Open House was successful. She stated that the architect 
gave a great presentation and reviewed the blueprints of the expansion. Sticha gave a speech 
as well regarding the expansion. The CH expansion committee will be meeting next week and 
they are looking for members. Sticha stated that they have met with the Commissioners and 
they have agreed to be our partner with Keystone Grant, and asked if the County had any funds 
available that they could donate for the expansion. Sticha stated that one of the  
Commissioners  suggested that we write a one page executive summary of the project. 
 
Holt – Sticha stated that Hutton had reached out to her, and said that the other window in the 

stairwell is starting to retain moisture. Taylor asked how much the last window replacement 
was, and stated that we could assume that cost plus some inflation to calculate the cost.  

 
Bellefonte Little House -  

 
Fundraising/Development: Sticha stated that our Centre Gives fund of $33,751 were received 
the last week of July. Schwartz will begin working on the Annual Appeal once she has finished 
up working on the Centre Hall case of support. Rhumbaugh stated that she has begun to do 
research on Legacy giving and thinks that this is a good market for the library. Further 

discussion was held regarding Legacy giving.  
 

Planning: No updates. 
 

Nomination: Sticha reminded the board that Inglesby will be cycling off. She stated the 
Commissioners have asked for suggestions for the appointment. Rhumbaugh asked if the 

candidate had to live in our service area, and Sticha stated that she does not believe so. 
Inglesby stated that those whose terms are ending need to make the decision on whether they 

are staying on the board or if they will not seek another term. Taylor stated that he will not be 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 125 of 134



4 
 

continuing on with his appointment from Bellefonte. Prendergast stated that she will stay on.   
Terms ending December 2025 

● Mary (Director at Large) – 1st term 
● Vickie (Spring Twp) – 1st term 

● Bryce (Bellefonte)– 1st term 
● Carl (Commissioner) -  2nd term   

 
Holt Friends - A book sale was held in July during Heritage Days.  

 
Bellefonte Friends - Rosson stated that there was a fundraiser on August 8th. They broke even, 
but did get more members. October 17th is the next planned event at the Library. They will be 
doing a Murder and mocktails event. The computer desk has been installed at the library,  and 
looks good. The Friends received $3600 from the Centre Gives event. Further discussion was 
held regarding the event at the beginning of the month.  
 

PPVLS- Sticha stated that their next meeting will be September 15th. She will be discussing how 
State, County and Schlow funding works in building the budget. Rhumbaugh stated that the 

next steak dinner is October 25, 2025. 
 
 
Comments for the Good of the Order and Adjournment:  Next meeting will be on September 
25, 2025 hybrid. Reese stated that the Tyrone Library was in and took several books for their 
collection. Rhumbaugh stated that Edwards asked for $200 to purchase replacement books for 
some that are well worn. Cleeton asked about First Aid training, and wanted to know if we had 
done the training. She stated that she will talk with Scott Rhoat about doing the training. Sticha 
stated that if he would be able to do the training a Tuesday and Thursday morning would work 
best.  

 
 Gomez made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm. Seconded by Rhumbaugh. Motion 

carried. 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
Michele Reese, Office Manager 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 126 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 127 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 128 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 129 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 130 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 131 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 132 of 134



Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 133 of 134



RESOLUTION NO. 2025- 10202025-1 
---------------

RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S UPDATED POLICIES 

WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough recognizes their legal and ethical duty to provide 
constitutional, safe, and effective law enforcement services to all members of the community; and 

WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough Council acknowledges the need for clear and concise policies 
for the members of the Bellefonte Borough Police Department pursuant to federal and state law; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Bellefonte Borough police department command staff regularly reviews,all police 
General Orders, policies, and training to make sure that best practices are being followed, and all applicable 
State and Federal Constitutional rights are properly protected; and 

WHEREAS, The Chief of Police and members of the police department are reviewing the 
Department's policies and related topics. Updates were recommended, then reviewed by an attorney who 
specializes in police policy. The changes include updated terminology and changes based on applicable 
case law and training standards; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, TO BE RESOLVED, the Bellefonte Borough Council adopts the 
Police Department's updated policy, Less Lethal Shotgun Police 1.3.4.1, which is effective immediately. 
A true and correct copy of the Policies is attached to and incorporated into this Resolution as Exhibit "A." 
The Policy shall supersede all prior Department policies that are inconsistent with the Policy. Furthermore, 
the Chief of Police is directed to immediately implement the Policy, furnish a copy of the Policies to all 
police personnel and revise the Police Department's Standard Operating Procedures in conformance with 
the Policy. 

DULY ADOPTED this day of 2025 by the Borough of Bellefonte in lawful session duly assembled. 

Barbara Dann, President Johanna Sedgwick 

Doug Johnson, Vice President Shawna McKean 

Randy Brachbill Rita Purnell 

Deborah Cleeton Joanne Tosti-Vasey 

Kent Bernier 

Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20. 2025

Page 134 of 134


	Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20, 2025
	WORK SESSION --AGENDA 10202025

	WORK SESSION--Parks and Refuse Funds
	Bellefonte Borough Council Packet October 20, 2025
	COUNCIL MEETING --AGENDA 10202025
	COMMUNICATIONS--Special Events October-December 2025
	Calendar - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook
	Calendar - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook 1
	Calendar - Alyssa Doherty - Outlook2

	COMMUNICATIONS--Bellefonte Art Museum request for funding
	COMMUNICATIONS--Speeding complaint on Allegheny and High Streets
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual September 2025
	CONSENT--Budget v. Actual Summary September 2025
	CONSENT--Campbell Durrant Legal Invoice September 2025
	CONSENT--Council Meeting Minutes10062025.DRAFT
	CONSENT--Stover McGlaughlin Legal Invoice September 2025
	CONSENT--Treasurers Report September 2025
	CONSENT--Voucher Summary September 2025
	REPORTS. POLICE--September 2025 Report
	REPORTS. PARKING--September 2025
	REPORTS. OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 10.20.2025
	OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 10.20.2025
	OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 10.20.2025
	TO: Bellefonte Borough Council
	DATE: For Council Meeting October 20, 2025
	PLANNING:
	The Planning Commission met on Monday, October 13, 2025. The minutes and meeting materials are included in  my report. Although no formal land development applications were presented for review, the Commission discussed upcoming SALDO submissions, pot...
	The next Planning Commission meeting will be Monday, November 10 at 5:00 PM.
	ZONING:
	HARB:
	HARB met on Tuesday, October 14, 2025. The minutes and meeting materials are included in  my report. There was one project for formal review and then discussion on other topics, including upcoming exterior renovations to the Plaza Center building on H...
	Recommended for approval/the issuance of a Certificate of Appropriateness:
	The next HARB meeting will be Tuesday, October 28th at 8:30 AM.
	In-Progress Projects – I work on these as time permits



	10.13.2025-PC-Agenda
	OCA--Memo to Council for meeting of 10.20.2025
	Planning Commission Mtg Minutes--10.13.2025.DRAFT
	OCA--417 E Bishop - demo garage
	10.13--417 E Bishop - demo garage
	417 e bishop - pic of garage

	OCA--HARB Meeting Agenda 10.14.2025
	OCA--HARB Minutes DRAFT.10.14.2025
	OCA--HARB Presentation.10.14.2025
	BOROUGH OF BELLEFONTE�HISTORICAL ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9



	REPORTS. INTERIM BOROUGH MANAGER--September 2025 Report
	COMMITTEE REPORTS. Parks and Recreation Committee Report  October 9 2025
	Parks and Recreation Committee Report for October 9 2025 p. 1
	I. Overview
	A. Next steps


	Parks and Recreation Committee Report for October 9, 2025 pp 2-4
	Talleyrand Park and Talleyrand Park Committee Discussion
	Spring Creek Wall Safety Issue between the Veteran’s Bridge and the Suspension Bridge
	Ice Skating Rink
	Talleyrand Park Committee Funds
	Bandshell Update
	Commemorative Bricks
	Park Projects and Grant Updates

	Governor’s Park
	Parks Budget Planning
	E-Bike Initiatives
	Library-based E-bike lending program
	E-Bike Training

	Railroad Spur
	Subdivision Plan
	Trail Feasibility Study Discussion



	COMMITTEE REPORTS. Infrastructure and Public Works Committee September 2025
	LIAISON REPORTS. Workplace Safety Committee Meeting October 8, 2025
	Agenda.10082025 on letterhead
	Safety Committee Meeting Minutes.09172025
	Small Falls Are a Big Deal Quiz

	LIAISON REPORTS. Authority Meeting Minutes.10072025.DRAFT
	LIAISON REPORTS. CCAA Meeting Minutes 09112025
	LIAISON REPORTS. CCLHM Minutes 08.28.25
	OLD BUSINESS--Fee Schedule revised October 2025
	OLD BUSINESS--Resolution No. 10202025-01 Police Department updated Policy




